MEETING MINUTES SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY April 23, 2015-6:30 PM

A. Call to Order and Roll Call

The School Board of Santa Rosa County met in regular session at 6:30 p.m. with the following members present. Mr. Hugh Winkles, Chairman, Mrs. Jennifer Granse, Vice-Chairman, Mr. Scout Peden, Dr. Diane Scott and Mrs. Carol Boston. Also present was Timothy S. Wyrosdick, Superintendent of Schools and Secretary and Paul R. Green, Board Attorney.

B. Pledge of Allegiance

The Chairman called the meeting to order. Mr. Lewis Lynn led us in a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

C. Approval of Minutes

1. School Board Minutes March 10, 2015

Motion to Approve was moved by Diane Scott, Seconded by Jenny Granse. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

D. Oral Written Communications

None

E. Recognitions/Resolutions/Proclamations

1. Amazing Shake Top Ten Students

Mr. Wyrosdick asked Jeffery Baugus, Dean at Woodlawn Beach Middle School to come forward. Mr. Baugus explained the Amazing Shake program teaches students about soft skills they will need in business. They learn how important such things as eye contact, firm handshake, beginning and ending conversations. The top ten students in the program were Hunter McCallum, Joseph Staudt, Connor Brasell, Neveah Sullivan, Christian Sutton, Pheonix Aldrich, Ashlyn Stikeleather, Maggie Townsend, Caitlyn Fischtziur and the winner Dari Batova. Mr. Baugus explained that this group participated in a 10 minute job interview, then visited Whiting Field's leadership, and the top 3 went to Jackson's Steak House to have dinner with the Superintendent and two State Representatives.

2. 2015 Sandy Sansing Spelling Bee Winner

Ms. Patty Petrie, Coordinator of Literacy came forward and asked Tonya Shepherd, Assistant Principal at Gulf Breeze Middle School to come forward and join her. Together they recognized Rebecca Woodcock, as the 2015 Sandy Sansing Spelling Bee Winner in the 8th grade division.

3. Student recognition - GBHS

Charlin Knight, Director of Workforce Education came forward and asked Jessica Laenger, a junior at Gulf Breeze High School and her Principal, Jason Weeks to come forward. She recognized Jessica, who has a GPA of 4.0106.2 for winning the Stem Sunshine State Award in Orlando, Florida on February 21st.

4. 5th Grade Essay winner

April Martin, Director of Elementary Education came forward and introduced Ms. JoAnn Timlin of the Retired Educators Association. Ms. Timlin introduced Carolyn McLaughlin, President of the Retired Educators Association and Marilyn Cook, Treasurer. Together they recognized the following students for their essay's about their grandparents. 3rd place winner was Olivia Metford from Pea Ridge Elementary accompanied by the Assistant Principal, Brenda Dwiggins. Olivia wins \$25.00.

2nd place winner was Macey Rowell, Rhodes Elementary School. Macey wins \$50.00. The 1st place winner was Samual Andrews from Jay elementary School and he won \$100.00.

F. Public Hearing

1. Request to Advertise Public Hearing - Code of Student Conduct

Motion to Approve was moved by Scott Peden, Seconded by Carol Boston. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0. The board approved the request to advertise a public hearing on the Code of Student Conduct on June 25, 2015 at 6:30 p.m.

2. Request to Advertise Public Hearing - Revision to SB Policy 6.501

Motion to Approve was moved by Scott Peden, Seconded by Carol Boston. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0. The board approved the request to advertise for a public hearing on the revision to School Board Policy 6.501 to be held May 21, 2015 at 9:00 a.m.

3. Conduct Public Hearing on Revision of School Boundaries

Motion to Approve was moved by Diane Scott, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Failed by a Vote of 2 - 3.

The Chairman opened the floor for the public hearing on revisions of school boundaries and asked Mr. Joey Harrell, Assistant Superintendent for Administration to come forward and review the process the district used to determine the revised boundaries being proposed.

Mr. Harrell began by stating that rezoning is a necessary step when a school begins to reach capacity and happens all over the State of Florida. The core density surrounding our Pace Schools is increasing but before we can build new schools or add additional capacity, we are directed to maximize the use of all open space which the taxpayers have funded. The State recommended capacity for schools

are: 100% for Elementary; 90% for Middle Schools; and 95% for High Schools. Currently S. S. Dixon Primary School is at 106% capacity, S. S. Dixon Intermediate is at 85% capacity, while Chumuckla Elementary School is at 73% capacity. If all the students from Ashley Plantation were to transfer, capacity would increase to 88%

He explained that projects which increase our capacity must be approved by the Department of Education (5 year survey). Capital Outlay FTE (COFTE) projections are the basis for this approval. COFTE is not student enrollment nor is it FTE. The COFTE number used for the current 5 year survey is 24, 233 as opposed to the current enrollment of 26,100. Current COFTE projection for 2019-2020 is 24,810 students. Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) indicates that we currently have a capacity of 30, 291 student stations available throughout the school district. Based on current enrollment numbers, this translates to an 86% district wide utilization of space.

Mr. Harrell reviewed the following planned unit developments that are currently being built or have been approved for the near future. He started with Ashley Planation which has been approved for 476 lots, 163 have been constructed with an additional 313 lots remaining. Pace Mill Creek was approved for 285 single family dwellings, 123 have been constructed with 162 units remaining. Parkwood Commons has been approved for 213 lots with only 10 single family dwellings constructed with 203 remaining units. Wynfield Subdivision will have 59 approved plots. The vacant land located between North Spencer Field Road and Berryhill Road has been recently rezoned and there will be approximately 277 single family dwellings.

Mr. Harrell mentioned that he has reviewed other suggested areas to rezone at the suggestion of Ashley Plantation residents. He went over the number of students that live in Hammersmith, Habersham, Abernathy, Whisper Creek, Holly Cliff Estates, Cotton Wood Estates and the reasons for their boundaries. He also reviewed the areas of Floridatown, Woodland Manor, Bon View and Cambria, and Winners Gait.

There was also a conversation about the possibility of converting S. S. Dixon Primary and S. S. Dixon Intermediate to K-5 Schools. There are advantages to this idea and he went on to state that if we rezone and create two K-5 facilities, the percentages change dramatically and we have more available capacity for future growth. Given the same number of student stations (1,612), the two schools projected capacities would be 85%. Dixon Primary would house approximately 600 students and Dixon Intermediate would house approximately 768 students. This conversion would address the anticipated growth located within the core of Pace as well as saving tax payers dollars by more efficiently utilizing existing space.

Mr. Harrell mentioned the importance of student diversity. He reviewed the percentages of students who qualify for free and

reduced lunch and how rezoning can create a large scale inequity between schools.

Another concern he has heard from parents relates to transportation and before and after school childcare. The district will offer transportation to the Latchkey program located at Dixon Primary and possibly Dixon Intermediate. If the majority of families within Ashley Plantation request morning Latchkey services, one will be provided at Chumuckla Elementary School. The transportation department furnished him with the current morning and afternoon routes for Dixon Primary and Dixon Intermediate and the proposed routes for Chumuckla School. There was very little difference between the routes times and miles traveled. Students involved in gifted education will be offered the same opportunity as students enrolled at Dixon Primary and Intermediate.

In summary, Mr. Harrell stated that rezoning is a process that all school districts must incorporate in order to maximize the use of educational spaces. As the core density surrounding the Pace schools continues to increase, rezoning students to other schools will be required. He asked the board if they had any questions on his presentation. Mrs. Granse stated that she has heard many comments from the parents and residents of Ashley Plantation regarding their opposition to rezoning their children from the Dixon schools to Chumuckla. Most of their concerns were before and after school childcare and transportation. She complimented Mr. Harrell and the district staff for putting together a plan to handle the overcrowding and said this is a tough position for the board. Dr. Scott asked about our involvement with the County and their approval process for all the new developments in Pace. She also asked what the impact would be if we don't rezone. Mr. Harrell explained that the first thing that comes to mind is that we will continue to be out of compliance with the class size amendment. There is no room for any additional portables. The board is required to show DOE they are working on bringing the schools into compliance. Mr. Harrell feels the idea of converting the primary and intermediate schools into K-5 schools is a good one, but it will require at least 3-6 months of planning and that won't help us right now. The board approved Mr. Harrell working with a certified planner through the University of Florida a few weeks ago and he mentioned he is looking forward to working with them on planning for future growth. Mrs. Boston asked if we were out of compliance with the class size amendment last year. Mr. Emerson confirmed that we were, and that is one of the reasons we are working on the rezoning plan.

Mr. Winkles called on the following people who indicated they wanted to address the board.

<u>For a complete word for word transcript of the public hearing, please</u> <u>see the video. The following presentations to the board have been condensed.</u>

opportunity to speak. He mentioned that the majority of the parents living in Ashley Plantation bought their homes there because they wanted their children to attend the Pace schools. The distance the children will be riding on buses will add an additional hour to both the morning and afternoon routes, not to mention that the distance would make it almost next to impossible for working parents to participate in school activities. He meet with Mr. Harrell and Mr. Wyrosdick and provided several different proposals but feels none of them have been considered. He suggested their children be rezoned to Berryhill Elementary as it is much closer than Chumuckla Elementary and they have room for them. He acknowledges the Pace area is going to grow, but feels we should plan for the students we already have in the district now and not the growth that is expected. He pointed out that there are 5 subdivisions closer to Chumuckla than Ashley Plantation. Mr. Joslyn mentioned that the district hasn't considered the waiver option, nor had the Superintendent completely investigated the option of converting the Dixon schools into K-5 schools. He also called attention to Press Gazette articles that reported Santa Rosa County cannot build a new school until all student stations are filled and that rezoning must be done before State approval to build a school. In an e-mail response that he received from Commissioner Stewart, the decision to rezone is completely a local decision, it is not a State mandate. He asks that the board instruct the staff to explore other options than rezoning the children from Ashley Plantation.

Mr. Andrew Joslyn stated he appreciated the board giving him the

Dr. Tony Beckham stated he was a member of the Dixon Student Advisory Council and is the father of two sons. He said it is reasonable for the board to consider diversity as important and a cross section of the community in which they live. However, he feels the children of color will be negatively impacted if the rezoning goes though. Dr. Beckham called attention to the percentage of children of color in the Dixon Schools vs. Chumuckla Schools stating that he feels the impact will be harmful both in school and extracurricular activities. He believes that the population of Pace is more diverse and will provide children of color more opportunities and exposed to better culture.

Mrs. Boston asked if we know what the percentage of minority students is in Ashley Plantation. Dr. Scott asked if we conducted any demographic disparity study for the schools besides free and reduced lunches. Mr. Emerson responded that we don't know what the percentage is and a study has not been conducted. He stated you can step into any school in our county and you will find that the school represents that area. Each school tells a different story. Mr. Wyrosdick said that no disparity study has ever been done for a rezoning.

Mr. Frank Anderson shared with the board that he is in the military and has recently received orders to relocate. He put his home up for sale and received an offer, only to have it recanted when the buyers heard of the possibility of the neighborhood being rezoned to Chumuckla School. He stated that in his line of work he has to calculate where he

buys a home when he knows he will have to sell it at a later date. The single most important item is the school district. He will have to lower the price of his home effectively lowering the values of the homes in Ashley Plantation. He asked the board to re-consider the recommendation of rezoning Ashley Plantation.

Gregg Gray came forward and said he hasn't heard anyone address the unique needs of the military. He stated military kids are always transferring to new schools, sometimes in the middle of a school year. He heard from the Military Liaison at Whiting Field that there are less than 10 military families attending Chumuckla School. He stated he didn't feel that school had the experience needed to deal with the needs of military kids. At Dixon Primary there are quite a few military families attending there and they would be going to school with plenty of students that are just like them. The teachers at Dixon are more familiar with the needs of military students and getting them up to speed quickly. He also was concerned with the distance. Now that he is on shore duty he can spend more time with his kids and likes to join them for lunch or other school activities. If they are transferred to Chumuckla that will not be possible because of the distance and time it will take to get there. He asks the board to please re-consider the recommendation of rezoning and look at other alternatives that could be used.

Mr. Wyrosdick stated that Chris Hendricks is here and is the Military Liaison and has told him they can provide services at Chumuckla School. Mr. Winkles asked Mr. Danny Carnley, Principal at Chumuckla to come forward. He said they don't have a large community of military families but they are looking forward to them coming and they will have a liaison to serve the school. His facility will make the students feel as comfortable as possible. Mrs. Boston asked if other neighborhoods in the Pace area have the same military populations. Mr. Harrell said most of the neighborhoods in the Pace area would have about the same percentage of military living there.

Ashley Lovelady shared with the board that she lives in a tiny neighborhood close to Floridatown. Her neighborhood might have 10 children total. She stated she doesn't understand why her street was picked for rezoning to Pea Ridge Elementary. She doesn't have a problem with any school but she would like her children to stay where they are. She feels the focus is on new growth not on the established neighborhoods who are already in place.

Amin Antoun came forward and said his family moved to Ashley Plantation two years ago and he has two children, 9 and 5 years old. He did a lot of research before deciding on where to live. He could have moved into the neighborhood across the street from where he works, but he decided on Ashley Plantation due to the schools. If he gets a call from the school letting him know one of his children is sick he will have double the commute to pick them up and get them back to the doctor. Another concern he has is with the buses. The air conditioning doesn't work well on them and now they have double the distance to travel on the buses. Bullying is also a concern when you

have kids riding a bus with such a large age difference. He asked the board to please re-consider the rezoning as his children are adjusting well and he sees no reason for them to change.

Keith McIver explained that he moved to Ashley Plantation last August and has 5 children in the Pace school district. He reviewed the numbers that have been printed in the Pensacola News Journal that showed the primary school was at 106% capacity, the intermediate school is at 85% and Chumuckla is at 73%. Chumuckla currently has 293 students with a capacity of 403. He noticed they have 3 portables on the campus at Chumuckla. He understands with the class size amendment each portable would probably contain about 20 children. If the portables were moved, Chumuckla would have 293 students with a capacity of 343 which puts them at 85%. Ray Ramirez stated that Mr. Joslyn addressed most of the concerns of the parents in Ashley Plantation, but they haven't received answers to the many proposals the community made to the district rather than re-zoning. He mentioned that \$5 million dollars was spent at Chumuckla that could have been spent at the Dixon schools since most of the students attend those schools. Mr. Winkles said he thought the point that Mr. Harrell was making is that we have to show we are using all capacity before the state will allow us to build any new schools. Mr. Harrell confirmed the money spent at Chumuckla was survey generated, they had to replace the kitchen/cafeteria and add a music and art room. It all goes back to how large do you want to make a school? 1300 to 1400 students in an elementary school can begin to make it unmanageable.

Allison Ramirez came forward with a map that showed the distance between Ashley Plantation and several other schools in the Pace area, as well the distance between other neighborhoods to Chumuckla and Pace. She stated she wants her children to go to school in the community in which they live. She heard the proposed bus routes and feels there is no way they will be what the district is showing. While she respects Mr. Harrell's calculations, the distance is twice as long as it is now. There was discussion about what route the bus will take and whether it really would be quicker or not with fewer stops on the bus route

.

Mrs. Ramirez told the board that she talked with a new resident of Ashley Plantation who told her Dixon would not enroll her 5 year old daughter in Kindergarten because she lived in Ashley Plantation. She also said that her daughter told her that over ITV the school is telling the children they are over capacity and some of them will be leaving before school starts next year. She said it feels as though this decision has already been made and the public hearing is just a formality. Mr. Winkles stated he felt confident in Mr. Harrell's bus transportation calculations due to his history of working with him. He said that in his 25 years on the board that at one time or another almost every community has been re-zoned. Mr. Wyrosdick said that if the school is making announcements to the students about the re-zoning, he will take care of it. As far as kindergarten registration, it might be they are

not enrolling any students yet. Elementary Schools usually have a designated time for kindergarten registration. In conclusion, Mrs. Ramirez asked the board to postpone the rezoning and over the next 6-8 months' work on other options.

Katie Henley shared with the board that her family built their home in Ashley Plantation and moved in December of 2013. She has 2 daughters and they built in Pace because they wanted their children to attend Pace schools. Her primary concerns were the commute from work being at least an hour away if she needed to get to them. She also was concerned about the condition of Chumuckla Elementary. She asked about lead base paint and asbestos. Mr. Harrell responded that we have reports from a study that was done a year and half ago that explained that as long as asbestos and lead based paint was encapsulated it isn't against code. Mr. Winkles gave her a copy of the minutes of the board meeting where this was discussed and also offered her a copy of the actual report if she wanted to read it. She asked if Mr. Wyrosdick knew when a new school might be built. He said he could not answer that question right now.

Joseph Mata asked the board what the school rating of Chumuckla was and Mr. Wyrosdick responded that it is currently rated a "B" school, however over the past 16 years it has been rated an "A" school. He has 4 children and moved from Virginia to make sure his children attended one of the top rated schools in the nation. He wanted his children to attend school with the same friends and have a stable environment from K-12. He feels moving them from an "A" school to a "B" school is not looking after their best interest. He is concerned about getting to his children in case of an emergency with such a long commute. Mr. Mata stated if the board was going to rezone the children they should provide an equal education in the proximity of the neighborhood where the family lives and works. He encouraged the board to reject the re-zoning proposal. Troy Barwick stated that his neighbors have all made good points this evening. He shared with the board that the Ashley Plantation citizens were voters who pay the board members' salaries and they expect elected officials to do the right thing and this re-zoning isn't it. He feels this decision is back room politics. He said that considering that Mr. Harrell's neighborhood had not been touched, he felt he should have recused himself from making the proposal. He asked the board to postpone their decision and allow residents to be part of the solution.

Julie LaRon asked the board how Ashley Plantation was picked to be the neighborhood to re-zone. Mr. Wyrosdick told her they didn't just pick them. The district studied the capacity of all schools, the distance, the number of children and the fact that a portion of Ashley Plantation is already zoned for Chumuckla weighted into the decision. She expressed her concern about being a working parent and having a commute of one hour if she needs to get to them. She is going to have

to have before and after school care and her children will only be at home maybe 10 hours a day. She is worried about their grades and long term performance.

Peter Verchio asked if the board has looked at how many students may be attending Dixon schools who should be going to another school. Mr. Winkles asked if he was asking about board approved transfer requests. Mr. Wyrosdick said the board does due diligence to make sure the information provided by parents is correct but if we find out it isn't, the student is immediately withdrawn. Mr. Verchio noted that Ashley Plantation has been under development for 8 vears and he understands the board has to plan for the future. He believed that Hammersmith was zoned for Berryhill Elementary School when it was developed. Since Mr. Harrell was previously the Assistant Principal of Dixon Intermediate and is now responsible for drawing up the re-zoning plans did the board consult the State of Florida Div. of Ethics, Office of Professional Practices or the Santa Rosa County State Attorney to determine if his decisions should be reviewed independently? Mr. Wyrosdick responded that he and the board have been provided with a transparent report and that Mr. Harrell used due tiling to make certain of his calculations. The answer to his question is No. Mr. Wyrosdick said he takes offense to the accusations that the district hasn't looked at other options.

Alan Isaacson shared with the board that he lives in Winner's Gait and has been on the Zoning Board for 4 years. The School Board has a seat on the board but no one has ever attended. The Zoning Board has restrictions they work under and probably could have cut the amount of homes approved by the hundred's if they had known there were issues. This is the first he has ever heard of an issue. This concerns him because he could have given the district valuable information and they could have worked together. The new subdivision that is going in off West Spencer Field Road is probably 3-5 years down the road. He asked why the new subdivision can't be bused to another school and leave the established neighborhoods alone. Mr. Isaacson said the Zoning Board is beginning to re-do their Comprehensive Plan this month and he would like to see someone from the school board attend these meetings.

Jonathan Tisdell came forward explaining that he was the father of a baby and right now the re-zoning would not affect them, however when the time comes he will not send this child that far away. He will either have to send him to a private school or sell his home at a loss. This discussion doesn't seem to be what is best for the children as it is about the penalty the district will have to pay if they don't meet the class size amendment. The presentation that Mr. Harrell made was to reach the goal of re-zoning. He said the Pace rural designation was changed back in 2010 and the district should have been working on this. If the school district moved the 3 portables at Dixon it would immediately change the dynamics of the school. He doesn't feel the district can vote yes on this re-zoning because no formal studies have been done on how it will affect the military, or minorities. There has

been no concern about the residents' property values going down. The residents' concerns and objections have been brought up and answered tonight but no studies have been done to confirm anything. He feels the board cannot make a decision until the studies have been done.

Gabe Oguns moved into Ashley Plantation 6 weeks ago. He said he would have paid less money and moved to the Chumuckla area if he wanted his kids to go to that school. They paid more for their property to get the better school district. His child told him the ITV system at school has been telling them they will have move to move to another school. The board is looking at neighborhoods that haven't even been built yet. The board is elected and they are not protecting their interest.

Bummy Oguns came forward and mentioned that she has put her career on hold while raising her children. She can have lunch with them at school or pick them up from school but will not be able to do that as easily if they have to commute to Chumuckla. She said all the parents are here tonight for the benefit of their children.

Mr. Wyrosdick said that he appreciates all the passion he see tonight and it is obvious that everyone cares about their children. Santa Rosa County is blessed that we have schools that provide a high quality education. That education is provided whether it is Dixon, Sims, Chumuckla or any school in our district. He visited with Chumuckla Elementary this week and their passion for education is under estimated and undervalued. They want to provide the best for all children. This is a hard decision for the board to make but he feels the 10-12 people who worked on the plan did their due diligence. Re-Zoning is required to maximize tax dollars. He appreciates Mr. Harrell and his team for the plan that was presented. He recommended the board pass the re-zoning as presented.

Mrs. Granse said she wishes there was something else we could do for these 63 children. If it was more like 100-150 children she could see re-zoning them. She has sat down with Mr. Harrell and Mr. Wyrosdick and all options were discussed. She doesn't feel it is fair for the residents to say they didn't research other options.

Dr. Scott disagrees with the comments that have been made that this is purely a financial decision. We have to take that into account any time we make educational decisions but this isn't about the penalty. She understands this is really tough.

Mrs. Boston stated this is very challenging, her family has been through this as well, and she has had to leave her career for her military spouse. The Navarre area has had to go through a lot of rezoning as it has grown. She feels a lot of the way children react to rezoning or moving has to do with the way parents react. She prefers the K-5 Elementary option and would like to see us evaluate that option further.

Mr. Peden said that he concurs with Mr. Harrell and Mr. Wyrosdick. He had about a 3 hour discussion with Mr. Harrell and feels they are good at what they do and feels they did their due diligence on looking into all options they could. He did say that tonight is the first time he has heard of the idea of converting the Dixon Schools into two K-5 schools. It is a viable option and we need to look into it. Dixon is overcrowded and the students might not get the attention they need. The Class Size Amendment is there for a reason. As far as he is concerned the board has only two options. They can vote for the rezoning or not, but if we don't vote for it, he doesn't want the board to be asked to change the boundaries of another neighborhood because we will be faced with the same issues.

Mr. Wyrosdick made his recommendation that we approve the rezoning as presented with the option for parents to keep their children at their present school provided they furnish their own transportation.

G. Public Forum- (Request to address the School Board regarding an item not on the agenda)

The Chairman opened the floor for the public forum and asked if anyone wanted to address the board regarding an item not on the agenda. There was no response and the forum was closed.

Administrative Agenda

H. Approval of Agenda- Items may be pulled from the Administrative Agenda and placed under the respective Action Agenda category by request of the Board member/Superintendent

Motion to Approve was moved by Scott Peden, Seconded by Carol Boston. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Board approved all Administrative Agenda Items H. 1.2.3 and 4 as submitted.

- 1. Human Resource items
 - a. Admin Agenda
 - b. Unpaid Leave and Temporary Duty
 - c. Annual Fire and Life Safety Inspections
- 2. Curriculum/Instruction Items
 - a. Suspensions

- b. Student Transfer Requests
- c. School Volunteers

3. Financial Items

- a. Budget Amendment #15/05, Bills and Payroll, and Monthly Financial Statement for January 2015
- 4. Administrative Operational Items
 - a. Field Trip Requests
 - b. Facility Use Requests
 - c. Religious Venue Request

Action Agenda

- I. Administrative/Operational Recommendations- Joey Harrell, Assistant Superintendent for Administrative Services
 - 1. Property Inventory Audit 042315

Motion to Approve was moved by Diane Scott, Seconded by Jenny Granse. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

2. Surplus 042315

Motion to Approve was moved by Diane Scott, Seconded by Jenny Granse. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

3. RFP 15-02 Electrician and Helper Award Letter 042315

Motion to Approve was moved by Diane Scott, Seconded by Jenny Granse. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

4. Food Service Quarterly Report 042315

The Superintendent asked the board to table the Food Service Quarterly Report until the next meeting.

5. DAG Architects Agenda Items

Motion to Approve was moved by Carol Boston, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0. The Board approved the following construction bid. Navarre High School -

Building Construction Technical Lab/Classroom Addition awarded to A. E. New Jr., Inc. as the lowest and best.

The Board reviewed the status of the current DAG Architects construction projects.

6. Pinder Martin Agenda Items

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Carol Boston. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Board approved the Holley Navarre Middle Budget Estimate and Phase III drawings for Kitchen Cafeteria Expansion.

The Board approved awarding the Gulf Breeze Middle School Kitchen/Cafeteria Expansion to A. E. New, Jr., Inc. as the lowest and best at \$1,404,000 covering the base bid and Add Alternates #1,#2 and #3.

7. Schmidt Consulting Agenda Items

The Board reviewed the status of the Gulf Breeze High School HVAC Renovation Phase II.

8. Direct Purchasing Change Orders

Motion to Approve was moved by Carol Boston, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Board approved the following change orders decreasing the projects payable below to the appropriate contractor by the amounts shown. These decreases are to reflect recent payments made to suppliers and the associated tax savings acquired through direct purchasing.

Gulf Breeze High School - Chiller Plant Phase II - A. E. New, Jr., \$34,809.11 Hobbs Middle School - Kitchen/Cafeteria/Bus Ramp/Parking - A. E. New, Jr., \$66,624.47

King Middle School - Kitchen/Cafeteria - A. E. New, Jr., \$153,720.68

J. Human Resource Recommendation- Lewis Lynn Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources

1. Human Resource Action Agenda

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Carol Boston. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0. The board approved the employee disciplinary action (Milton High School) as submitted.

Robert Cooper, parent of a Milton High student, requested to address the Board prior to the Board taking action on the recommendation of a five-day suspension without pay of a Milton High teacher. Mr. Cooper stated to the Board that he is not here to condemn anyone but is concerned about the safety/security of his son. He feels that this is not solely a disciplinary issue but an issue of mental health and would like for the teacher to receive counseling. Superintendent Wyrosdick assured Mr. Cooper that district staff as well as the school has reviewed the incident and will take appropriate action relative to the incident.

Board member Dr. Diane Scott asked if the safety of the student is being addressed. The Superintendent responded that he has requested the school to follow up and be sure that the safety of the student is paramount in their actions.

Motion to Approve was moved by Carol Boston, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The board approved the employee disciplinary action (Holley Navarre Primary) as submitted.

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Carol Boston. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Board approved the job description revisions (Director of Human Resources, Library Media Specialist, and Food Service Compliance Officer) as submitted.

Motion to Approve was moved by Diane Scott, Seconded by Jenny Granse. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Board approved the lateral transfer of Linda Gooch from Principal of Bagdad Elementary to Principal of S.S. Dixon Intermediate School, effective April 24, 2015.

Motion to Approve was moved by Scott Peden, Seconded by Diane Scott. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Board approved the administrative appointment of Daniel Baxley as Principal of Bagdad Elementary School, effective April 27, 2015.

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Board approved the administrative appointment of Monica Garcia as Assistant Principal of Oriole Beach Elementary School, effective June 22, 2015.

Motion to Approve was moved by Diane Scott, Seconded by Carol Boston. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Board approved the administrative appointment of Larry Heringer as Assistant Principal at Santa Rosa Adult School, effective May 4, 2015.

Motion to Approve was moved by Carol Boston, Seconded by Diane Scott. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Board approved the administrative appointment of Keith Hines as Assistant Principal at Locklin Technical Center, effective June 3, 2015.

Motion to Approve was moved by Carol Boston, Seconded by Jenny Granse. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Board approved the administrative appointment of Tina Howard as Assistant Principal at Holley Navarre Intermediate School, effective June 3, 2015.

Motion to Approve was moved by Carol Boston, Seconded by Diane Scott. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Board approved the administrative appointment of Wesley Underwood as Assistant Principal at Navarre High School, effective April 24, 2015.

K. Curricular and Instructions Recommendation – Bill Emerson, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum and Instruction

1. Learning Academy of Santa Rosa - 1st Semester Referrals

Motion to Approve was moved by Diane Scott, Seconded by Carol Boston. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

2. Memorandum of Understand between Council on Aging and Schools

Motion to Approve was moved by Carol Boston, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 4 - 0.

Dr. Scott recused from voting because she serves on the Board for Council on Aging.

3. Expulsions & Alternative Placements

Motion to Approve was moved by Scott Peden, Seconded by Jenny Granse. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The Chairman opened the floor for the Student Alternative Placements and Expulsions and asked if anyone here wanted to address the board.

The Superintendent shared with the board a note he received from a parent whose child was on the list tonight for alternative placement/expulsion. The parent wishes to speak to the board, however because our Public Hearing lasted so long, they had to leave before this item came up on the agenda. Mr. Wyrosdick asked the board to continue the student suspension and table the alternative placement for student #A15-0351-43 until the parent has an opportunity to speak.

The board approved the remainder of the student alternative placements/expulsions as submitted.

4. MOU between School Board of Santa Rosa County, Florida and the Council on Aging of West Florida, Inc.

Motion to Approve was moved by Carol Boston, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 4 - 0.

Dr. Scott recused from voting because she serves on the Board for Council on Aging.

5. NWFlorida Manufacturers Council

Motion to Approve was moved by Diane Scott, Seconded by Jenny Granse. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

6. Seminole County Agreement 2015-2016

Motion to Approve was moved by Carol Boston, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

7. Digital Learning Support Project Application

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Diane Scott. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

8. 21st Century Community Learning Center Grant

Motion to Approve was moved by Scott Peden, Seconded by Carol Boston. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

9. Title X Part 2 2-15-2016 Grant

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Diane Scott. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

10. Gifted Add-on Endorsement

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Carol Boston. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

11. FDLRS: Florida's Small Group Planning and Problem-Solving (SGPPS) Process

Motion to Approve was moved by Scott Peden, Seconded by Diane Scott. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

12. 2015-16 Elementary School Supply Lists

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

13. 2015-2016 Middle School Supply Lists

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

14. 2nd Semester High School Exam Schedules - 2015

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

15. Pensacola Bay Center Graduation Contract & Estimate May 2015

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

16. Summer Session 2015

Motion to Approve was moved by Jenny Granse, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

17. Early Head Start/Head Start Monthly Report of March 2015 (Review Only)

The board reviewed the Early Head Start/Head Start Monthly Report for March 2015.

18. Early Head Start/Head Start Environmental Health and Safety Screener (Review Only)

The board reviewed the Early Head Start/Head Start Environmental Health and Safety Screener.

19. Early Head Start/Head Start Governance Screener (Review Only)

The board reviewed the Early Head Start/Head Start Governance Screener.

L. Financial Recommendations – Susan McCole, Assistant Superintendent for Finance

1. Audit Report of the 2014 SRCSB Financial Statements

The Superintendent asked the board to table the presentation of the 2014 Audit Report. He is very proud of the report and doesn't feel we would do it justice if we don't spend some time on it. He asked Ms. Susan McCole to place it on next month's agenda for board review and approval.

M. Items from Board Members

Mrs. Boston mentioned several people who are leaving either by retiring or moving; Carol Bradley, Barbara Healey, Will Nowling, they will all be missed. She is looking forward to Ms. Tina Howard joining Holley Navarre Intermediate as the Assistant Principal and Wes Underwood coming back to Navarre High.

Dr. Scott complimented Jud Crane, Sodexo and Risk Management for the School Related Banquet last week. The food was wonderful and Risk Management was phenomenal.

Mr. Winkles mentioned that the board didn't solve the issue at Dixon Primary tonight and they can't let it go. Something has to be done.

N. Items from Board Attorney

1. School Board Deed to the County for Communication Tower (Munson Property)

Motion to Approve was moved by Diane Scott, Seconded by Scott Peden. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

The School Board approved signing of the deed and resolution to the County for the small piece of property located at Munson Elementary School for their use to build a communication tower for the area. The deed has a reverter clause in it so that the property comes back to the school district if the time comes that the tower is no longer needed by the county.

O. Items from Superintendent

The Superintendent echoed Mr. Winkles remarks that we didn't solve our overcrowding problem tonight. He said we can come up with a different plan, but he isn't sure it would be a better plan. He suggested a possible work session to give the board an opportunity to help come up with a solution to deal with the growth in our district. Starting over with a new plan will most certainly mean we will start the new school year with some of our schools overcrowded.

P. Adjournment

Motion to Approve was moved by Scott Peden, Seconded by Jenny Granse. Motion Passed by a Vote of 5 - 0.

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned.

DONE AND ORDERED IN LEGAL SESSION by the School Board of Santa Rosa County this 23rd day of April, 2015 A. D.

	SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
	Chairman
Superintendent and Secretary	